


 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., May 20, 2022 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Friday, May 13, 2022 
 2nd Printing – Wednesday, May 18, 2022 

            

 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – April 8, 2022 

                           

                                                            

                                                                                                                   PAGE (S)                                                                                      

                                                                                 

IV.    NEW BUSINESS  

1. Resolution No. FY2022-009 ……………………………………………………                  1 - 2 

Resolution Approving the Above-Step Recruitment for Jerricho 

C. Garcia, General Accounting Supervisor (RPE) 

2. Intent of Award………………………………………………………………………..                3 - 7 

Renovation of (6) Six Public Housing Units; 

IFB#GHURA-04-14-2022-AMPS 1, 3, & 4 

3. Request to Approve Change Order for the Inarajan Basketball  

Court 

 

 

 

 V.    OLD BUSINESS 

1.  Change Order for the Women’s Treatment Center ……………………….               8 - 42 

2.  Change Order for the Sinajana Arts Center ………………………………….             43 - 64 

 

 

 

 



 

 

VI.   CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS 

1. ROSS Program & Status Report ……………………………………………………    65 - 81 

 

 

VII.  GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1.   Award of FSS Certificate of Completion to Mr. Karl Corpus 

2. Government of Guam’s Ethics Training 

3. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Friday, June 10th , 2022 

 @ 12:00 p.m. 

    
Commissioners will attend the next scheduled GHURA BOC meeting via: 
 
   Dr. John Rivera, Chairman                                □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Monica Guzman, Vice Chairwoman               □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Frank Ishizaki, Commissioner                         □ Video Conference          □ In-person 
   Anisia Delia, Commissioner                              □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Nate Sanchez, Commissioner                           □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Emilia Rice, Commissioner                               □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner          □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
 
   Acknowledged by Chairman Rivera _______     Date: _________                                                                 
                                                                             

 

VIII.   ADJOURNMENT   







Board Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2022                                                                                                    Page 1 of 9 
 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., April 8, 2022 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

After notice was duly given, pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the 

Bylaws of the Authority, the Board of Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board meeting 

was called to order at 12:00 P.M. Friday, April 8, 2022 at the GHURA Sinajana Main Office, 

1st floor Conference room, by Chairman Rivera. He indicated that 6 members of the Board 

of Commissioners were present, representing a quorum and that the meeting would 

proceed as scheduled. 

 
PRESENT: (In person) 

 
Dr. John Rivera, Chairman  
Monica Guzman, Vice Chairwoman 
Frank Ishizaki, Commissioner  
Anisia Delia, Commissioner 
Nate Sanchez, Commissioner 
Emilia Rice, Commissioner  
Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner 
 
ABSENT: 
 
 
LEGAL COUNSEL: 
Anthony Perez, Esq.  
 
 

 
MANAGEMENT & STAFF: 
 
Elizabeth Napoli, Executive Director 
(Acting) 
Audrey Aguon, Deputy Director (Acting) 
Sonny Perez, A/E Manager 
Katherine Taitano, CD Chief Planner 
Kim Bersamin, HR Administrator 
Greta Balmeo, Buyer II Supervisor 
 
PUBLIC:  
 
Audrey Topasna 
Ashley Topasna 
Nathan Topasna 
Ryan Topasna 
Reed Topasna 
 

 
 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Friday, April 1, 2022 
 2nd Printing – Wednesday, April 6, 2022 

 ACKNOWLEDGED by the board.  

 

 

 

 

 



Board Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2022                                                                                                    Page 2 of 9 
 

 

            

 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – March 11, 2022 

[025/22] Vice Chairwoman Guzman moved to approve the minutes of the 

March 11, 2022 BOC meeting. Commissioner Corpus seconded the 

motion. There were no objections by the other board members. Motion 

passed.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                 

IV.    NEW BUSINESS  

1. Resolution No. FY2022-00- Resolution in Honor of Ray S. Topasna, GHURA 

Executive Director.  

[026/22] Chairman Rivera read the following Resolution: 

• On Feb. 20, 2022, the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority 

mourned the loss of its Executive Director, Ray S. Topasna. 

• GHURA wished to pay tribute to Executive Director Ray S. Topasna who 

served in the capacity of Executive Director of GHURA from January 

2019- February 2022. 

• GHURA recognized Ray S. Topasna’s achievements and contributions. 

• Director Topasna exemplified and maintained a high standard of 

professionalism. 

• Director Topasna’s passing meant the loss of a great leader and 

advocate for the employees of GHURA. 

• Director Ray demonstrated his support of pro-employee actions that he 

undertook during his tenure. 

• Director Ray oversaw the completion of housing and community 

development activities. 

• Director Ray was proud to lead GHURA, and its staff and management to 

the next level. 

• The Board of Commissioners, on behalf of the GHURA staff and 

management, pay tributed to Executive Director Ray S. Topasna, who 

dedicated his last years of government service to the success of this 

agency and its employees. 

• Director Ray’s wisdom and support will truly be missed.  

• Chairman Rivera requested that the board approve this resolution. 

 

 

 



Board Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2022                                                                                                    Page 3 of 9 
 

[027/22] Commissioner Sanchez moved to approve the resolution. 

Commissioner Delia seconded the motion.  

Vice Chairwoman Guzman added that no words could fully express how deep 

the loss is for the agency.  

There were no objections by the other board members. The motion passed.  

 

On behalf of the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority, Acting Executive 

Director Napoli presented Mrs. Audrey Topasna, wife of Ray S. Topasna, and family 

with a Distinguished Service Contribution and Dedication plaque for the late 

Executive Director Ray S. Topasna.  

 

Chairman Rivera added that he would like to contribute to Director Topasna’s legacy 

and donate his board stipend towards a scholarship in his name. He indicated that 

later discussions would identify specific parameters of the scholarship and who 

would benefit from it.   

The board and GHURA management expressed their deepest condolences to the 

family of the late Executive Director Ray S. Topasna.  

 

2. Intent of Award- Renovation of (7) Seven Public Housing Units; 

IFB#GHURA-01-27-2022-AMPs 1,2,3&4 

[028/22] Acting Director Napoli stated the following: 

• Bid opening for the project was held on March 3, 2022 at 2PM. 

• There was a total of (5) contractors that purchased bid specification 

packets. (5) contractors submitted a bid: 

1. Genesis Tech Corp.-submitted a bid for Base Bid #1 at $93,300. 

Bid Bond none submitted.  

2. O.H. Construction- submitted for Base Bid #1 at $109,000 and 

Base Bid #2 at $88,500. Bid bond 15% 

3. Asia Pacific Int’l- submitted for Base Bid #1 at $118,160 and 

Base Bid #2 $116,235. Bid bond 15% 

4. IAN Corp.- submitted Base bid #1 at $218,974.72 and Base Bid 

#2 at 239,550.18. Bid Bond 5% 

5. Surface Solutions- submitted Base Bid #1-132,008.04 and Base 

Bid #2 at 109,726.56. Bid Bond 15% 

• The Government estimate for Base Bid #1 was $106,452.52 and for Base 

Bid #2, $98,000. 

• Base Bid #1 was to renovate a total of (3) units; (1) in Asan and (2) in 

Toto Gardens. 

• Base Bid #2 was to renovate a total of (4) units; (3) in Inalahan and (1) 

in Merizo.  

• A detailed scope of work for the modernization of the units was included 

in the bid documents for review. 



Board Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2022                                                                                                    Page 4 of 9 
 

• Bid Review Results- O.H. Construction provided the lowest responsive 

and responsible bid for Base Bid #1 at $109,000 and Base Bid #2 at 

$88,500. O.H. Construction has been cleared by DOL compliance, OSHA 

and EPLS Debarred list.  

• Based on A/E staff’s review and determination, GHURA requested 

approval to issue contracts to O.H. Construction for Base Bid #1 and 

Base Bid #2 in the amount of $197,500. Funding is available under CAP 

funds. 

• GHURA did not receive the required bid bond from Genesis-Tech and 

IAN Corp., submission did not meet the required bid bond amount.  

Vice Chairwoman Guzman inquired about whether the board had approved an 

exterior and interior door replacements contract a couple of months ago. 

Commissioner Delia added that that approval was for units in different villages. 

Commissioner Sanchez added that the initial approval was not generalized across the 

board. Attorney Perez stated that he did not recall the door replacement contract 

being for all public housing units.  

There were no further discussions. 

[029/22] Commissioner Delia moved to approve the Intent of Award 

Renovation of (7) public housing units, IFB GHURA-01-27-2022 for AMPs 1, 2, 3, 

and 4 to O.H. Construction for Base Bid #1 and Base Bid #2 in the amount of 

$197, 500.00. Commissioner Sanchez seconded the motion. There were no 

objections from the other board members. The motion passed. 

3. Change Order for the Women’s Treatment Center 

[030/22] Mr. Sonny Perez, A/E Manager, stated the following: 

• The first (2) change orders are only for discussion. 

• Inland Builders has prepared the footing and the pouring of the footings 

for April 16. 

• Inland Builders had run into challenges. Mr. Perez presented a timeline: 

1. Building permit was submitted to DPW on February 10. 

2. March 17- government wide shutdown occurred while building 

permit was still in circulation. 

3. It took 1 year for building permit approval. It was approved in 

2021. 

4. Ordering Building materials could not be approved until permit 

was approved. 

5. During that time, Inland Builders had experienced the loss of H2 

workers and the increase of building materials.  

6. Project continued and GHURA held a ground breaking ceremony 

on September 1, 2021.  



Board Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2022                                                                                                    Page 5 of 9 
 

7. Inland Builders were able to recruit some manpower, but 

continued to run into building materials cost increases and 

equipment challenges.  

• April 8, 2022- Presented before the board was a change order in the 

approximate amount of $200,000. Contractor is still assembling 

information, which is the reason that this change order is for board 

discussion.  

 

4. Change Order for the Sinajana Arts Center 

[031/22] Mr. Sonny Perez, A/E Manager, stated the following: 

• Sinajana Arts Center is about 85-90% completed. 

• Substantial completion around mid-June. 

• Possible ribbon cutting scheduled for early July 

• Pending ceiling installation. 

• Exterior painting had begun. 

• Drop ceiling grid had been installed. 

• Mayor Hofmann had submitted a request for a change order.  

• Contractor had submitted the numbers to GHURA. 

• Negotiations are ongoing. 

• A walkway extension on the right-hand side, front entrance of the Art 

Center is a request on the change order.  The price difference has almost 

doubled due to an increase in material costs.  

• Pre-COVID cost for gymnasium side walkway was quoted at $71,000. 

The Post-COVID cost of an additional 30 feet walkway costs $150,000. 

Unfortunately, that price is the current rate.  

• The Walkway extension will include nonskid flooring, roof, and posts.  

Chairman Rivera inquired about whether this change order will provide functionality and 

safety for the patrons of the Sinajana Art Center. Mr. Perez confirmed this and indicated that 

the walkway extension will also provide convenience, accessibility, and protection from 

inclement weather.  

Vice Chairwoman Guzman inquired about whether the 71K that was approved by the board 

was a part of the existing contract. Mr. Perez confirmed this. Attorney Perez added that the 

change order would be for approximately $150,000.  

Commissioner Ishizaki inquired about the current rate for construction. Mr. Perez stated that 

he was informed that what was around $75 per square foot for a walkway is now 

approximately $151 per square foot.  

Commissioner Corpus asked if there was another door at the end of the walkway that leads 

directly into the art center and if there is an entrance there, why wasn’t a walkway put there? 

Mr. Perez indicated that he was not present in the planning.  



Board Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2022                                                                                                    Page 6 of 9 
 

Vice Chairwoman Guzman inquired if this would impact the June completion date. Mr. Perez 

stated that it would not, and that the walkway construction would be scheduled after the 

June completion date. Mr. Perez was informed by Mayor Hofmann that his summer programs 

will begin in June. Mr. Perez stated that mobilization of the walkway project may begin after 

the summer program has completed.  

Acting Director Napoli indicated to Mr. Perez that HUD may need to approve additional funds 

for the change order and approval will be dependent upon the availability of funds. Mr. Perez 

acknowledged this.  

There were no further discussions.  

5. Request to Approve Change Order to Contract GHURA-09-26-2017-CDBG 

InfraTech International LLC to Rehabilitate the Sinajana and Umatac Baseball 

Fields. 

[032/22] Mr. Sonny Perez stated the following: 

• The Umatac Baseball field is approximately 95-97% complete.  

• Possible ribbon cutting to happen next month. 

• February 9- lights were tested and successful 

• Reasons for change orders: 

1. Lighting upgrade-upgrade of fixtures on posts 

2. To Add backfill to the field due to the its instability  

3. Infratech was awarded (2) baseball field projects, (1) Sinajana 

baseball field and (1) Umatac Baseball field. In 2019, the Sinjana 

Baseball field was permitted and project was completed.  

 Contractor used the same design for both fields. Site 

conditions differ for both fields and (2) separate meters were 

required.  

 Permit for the Umatac baseball field was not issued and 

contractor claimed previous management had approved it. 

 Due to a swale on the Umatac baseball field, the contractor 

was required by GPA and EPA to use a specific type of system 

that included a concrete encasement for all wires and conduit 

wires, otherwise a permit would not be issued.  

• Mr. Perez requested the approval of the board for a $32,000 change 

order to remain compliant with GPA and EPA.  

Commissioner Sanchez inquired about whether GHURA was still contracted with Infratech. 

Mr. Perez confirmed this. Commissioner Sanchez added that Infratech should have done their 

due diligence to prevent from having to do all this.  

Commissioner Corpus inquired about what the change order entailed. Mr. Perez stated that 

soil will be dug up around the lights and concrete poured. This will not be done on the field, 

only around the lights.  



Board Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2022                                                                                                    Page 7 of 9 
 

Commissioner Sanchez asked about the location of the baseball field. Acting Director Napoli 

indicated that the field is located just before entering the village, on the right side. 

Commissioner Sanchez added that during heavy rains, that particular area is susceptible to 

flooding and wondered if that would pose a future financial problem for GHURA. 

Ms. Katherine Taitano, Chief Planner, stated that flooding is a serious consideration every 

time GHURA goes in for projects. It is also why many times GHURA has not been able to build 

or to assist when the proposed site was close to the water’s edge. If the environmental 

review of a project determines that it falls within a zone where flood issues are expected, 

then the project would be required to obtain flood hazard insurance.  

Chairman Rivera inquired about whether this change order would be enough to withstand 

the tests of time. Mr. Perez added that this change order is mainly for the lighting system to 

bring into compliance with GPA’s standards.  

Chairman Rivera asked Mr. Perez if this change order was enough to fulfill the electrical 

requirements.  Mr. Perez indicated that without this change order the lights could not be 

used and GPA would not approve the project to move forward with the occupancy permit.  

There were no further discussions.  

[033/22] Commissioner Sanchez moved to approve the $32,000 change order for the 

electrical system, GHURA-09-26-2017 CDBG Infratech International LLC, at the 

Humatak baseball field. Vice Chairwoman Guzman seconded the motion. There were 

no objections by the other board members. Motion carried.  

 V.    OLD BUSINESS 

 

1. LIHTC 2022 Tax Credit Allocation to Summer Vista I 

Ms. Katherine Taitano stated that this was a carryover from the prior meeting 

where counsel was not present. The board questioned whether legal counsel 

had reviewed the document. She added that she has brought the item back to 

the board for further questioning.  

• Chairman Rivera reminded the board that a motion regarding the LIHTC 

2022 Tax Credit Allocation to Summer Vista I was pending a review and 

approval from legal counsel. He inquired about whether the document 

was vetted and approved by legal counsel.  

• Attorney Perez confirmed that review and approval was completed. 

• There were no further discussions by the board members. 

 

VI.   GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Friday, May 13th , 2022 

 @ 12:00 p.m. Chairman Rivera requested that the commissioners mark their 

calendars.  

 



Board Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2022                                                                                                    Page 8 of 9 
 

[034/22] Acting Director Napoli stated that HUD would like to conduct a 

training session for the commissioners. She added that HUD needed available 

dates and times from the commissioners. HUD would then schedule the 

training times. Commissioners recommended April 28th and 29th in the 

morning hours. Ms. Katherine Taitano indicated that she would propose the 

schedule to HUD and added that HUD would be flexible to meet the needs of 

the board. She also added that the training would be a mix of Public Health, 

Public and Indian Housing, CPD Fair Housing, Ethics, and Conflict of Interest.  

 

[035/22] Vice Chairwoman Guzman announced that the Women’s Treatment 

Center and Umatac Baseball Field completion were reported on at the G3 Bi-

annual meeting as part of the Prosperous Community Committee report.  

 

[036/22] Acting Director Napoli thanked Chairman Rivera and those who 

were able to attend the Housing Symposium on Tuesday, April 5, 2022. She 

added that it was a successful event and credited the success of the 

symposium to the hard work of Chairman Rivera and his MPA students.  

 

[037/00] Chairman Rivera stated that all (4) AMPs were inspected this round 

and all passed HUD’s Real Estate Assessment Center (REAC) Inspection. 

Although the REAC Inspection is just one of the components of the total score, 

this was a great win for GHURA. He congratulated the staff and management of 

AMPS 1, 2, 3, and 4 for passing their inspections.  

 

There were no further announcements or discussions. Chairman Rivera asked 

if there was a motion to enter Executive Session. 

 

 

Commissioners will attend the next scheduled GHURA BOC meeting via: 
 
   Dr. John Rivera, Chairman                                □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Monica Guzman, Vice Chairwoman               □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Frank Ishizaki, Commissioner                         □ Video Conference          □ In-person 
   Anisia Delia, Commissioner                              □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Nate Sanchez, Commissioner                           □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Emilia Rice, Commissioner                               □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner          □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
 
  Acknowledged by Chairman Rivera _______     Date: _________                                                                 
                                                                             

 

 

 

 



Board Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2022                                                                                                    Page 9 of 9 
 

 VII.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

     [038/22] Commissioner Delia moved that the board go into Executive  

         Session. Commissioner Corpus seconded the motion. Chairman Rivera    

         announced that the body will move into executive session.  

 

 

VIII.   ADJOURNMENT   

 

      [039/22] Commissioner Delia moved to adjourn the GHURA Board meeting.  

          Commissioner Ishizaki seconded the motion. With no objections by the  

          other board members, meeting adjourned at 2:17PM.  



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 1 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 2 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 3 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 4 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 5 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 6 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 7 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 8 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 9 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 10 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 11 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 12 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 13 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 14 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 15 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 16 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 17 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 18 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 19 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 20 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 21 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 22 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 23 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 24 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 25 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 26 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 27 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 28 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 29 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 30 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 31 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 32 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 33 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 34 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 35 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 36 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 37 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 38 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 39 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 40 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 41 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 42 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 43 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 44 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 45 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 46 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 47 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 48 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 49 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 50 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 51 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 52 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 53 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 54 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 55 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 56 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 57 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 58 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 59 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 60 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 61 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 62 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 63 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 64 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 65 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 66 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 67 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 68 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 69 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 70 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 71 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 72 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 73 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 74 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 75 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 76 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 77 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 78 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 79 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 80 of 81



 
Board Meeting of May 20, 2022

 
PAGE 81 of 81


